Minutes of the Regular School Board Meeting

Of the School Board of Independent School District No. 709 held at the Historic Old Central High School, 215 North First Avenue East, Duluth, Minnesota 55802, on

Tuesday, November 21, 2017

Members Present:Others Present:Annie HaralaBill Gronseth, SuperintendentArt JohnstonDoug Hasler, Deputy ClerkDavid KirbyJackie Dolentz, SecretaryRosie Loeffler-KempStudent Representatives:

Alanna Oswald
Nora Sandstad
Harry Welty
Student Representatives:
Benjamin Emmel
Cabrilla Francis

➤ Chair Kirby called the Regular School Board Meeting of November 21, 2017 to order at 6:35 p.m., and the pledge of allegiance to the American flag was given.

M-Sandstad, S-Welty, to approve the agenda as presented.

Chair Kirby asked School Board members if there was any discussion on the agenda.

Upon a vote, the agenda was approved as presented – unanimously.

Chair Kirby asked School Board members if there were any corrections or changes to the minutes of the Regular School Board Meeting of October 17, 2017.

M-Harala, S-Loeffler-Kemp, to approve the minutes of the October 17, 2017 Regular School Board Meeting as presented. Upon a vote, the minutes were approved as presented - unanimously.

Chair Kirby asked School Board members if there were any corrections or changes to the minutes of the Special School Board Meeting of November 13, 2017.

M-Harala, S-Oswald, to approve the minutes of the November 13, 2017 Special School Board Meeting as presented. Upon a vote, the minutes were approved as presented - unanimously.

School and Community Recognition November 2017

Members of the Board, I'm pleased to present Jebeh Edmunds for recognition. Jebeh is a teacher at Congdon Park Elementary and also taught at Myers-Wilkins Elementary. She holds a Master

of Science in Teaching from The College of St. Scholastica and was featured in their Success Stories series last year. She's a Blandin Community Foundation Alum and a recipient of a Minnesota Reading Corps Teacher Corps Scholarship. Jebeh is Cofounder of the multicultural blog mommiesinblackandwhite.com and she founded the EBOLA BlockAID Fundraising initiative for Liberia. Her service with the school district includes the Nettle Site Council Committee, ISD 709 African American Educational Advisory Committee, the ELA Adoption Team, and ISD 709 Professional Development Committee. For all of this and more, the Duluth News Tribune presented her with its 2017 20 Under 40 Award. Jebeh, thank you for all you do to educate, teach and inspire young Duluth learners – and all of us – every day. Congratulations.

Public Comments November 2017

Debra Hannu, 304 North 40th Avenue East, spoke to the School Board as a resident of Lakeside about Catsby, a famous and popular cat that visited the East neighborhood and made himself at home in schools, nursing homes, etc. and always seemed to be around. He passed away last year. Funds were raised and a statute was created and donated in his honor.

Judith McKeever, 1202 Missouri Avenue, spoke to the School Board about her role as a paraprofessional, the challenges she and her co-workers face in this role and the need for training, support, substitute availability, increased focus on safety and the importance of sufficient wages and benefits to retain and attract employees.

Ethna Shemwell, 328 ½ West 26th Avenue West, spoke to the School Board about the vital role of the paraprofessionals, the importance of recognition for the job they do on a daily basis, and the need for a fair contract.

Bernie Burnham, address not provided, spoke to the School Board about the one-on-one conversations with staff have taken place to date and some of the common themes she is hearing: paraprofessional shortages and mental health needs.

Matt Horshen, address not provided, spoke to the School Board about the community collaborative including the current status and where they are heading in the future.

Kathy Bogen, address not provided, spoke to the School board about the community collaborative initiative and the growth of the program from one site to three.

Stacey Achterhoff, address not provided, spoke to the School Board about the homeless student population in our schools and the many challenges they face. She also discussed staffing needs and the struggles they face as well.

Tina Sorokie, Post Office Box 451, spoke to the School Board about challenges she has faced as an employee.

Kathy Doyle, 4715 West Seventh Street, spoke to the School Board about the school equity initiative program, the compensatory education funds and how they are divided among the schools, and the transportation issues students face on bad weather days.

Communications, Petitions, Etc. November 2017

Superintendent Gronseth stated no communications had been received.

Superintendent's Report November 2017

Tonight before the board meeting we celebrated our newly tenured teachers. There were 50 teachers on the list and we are happy to recognize their successful completion of their three year probationary period. I'd also like to thank everyone who helped to put this celebration together and special thank you to the Duluth East Sterling Strings who performed beautifully. Congratulations again!

Earlier this month we held our Annual Meeting at Lincoln Park Middle School. It was an amazing event and I want to thank the many people that made the event possible. Each of the schools, several of our programs, and community partners had informational booths. The Denfeld Jazz Band played, The Maroon 16 sang the National Anthem, and the Denfeld Deli students made tasty refreshments! We also shared the Annual Report with a video summary. All of the information shared that night and the video is available on the district website at www.isd709.org.

At this meeting we also shared our plans for a community conversation about Educational Equity. The Minnesota Department of Education working with focus groups and partners such as Voices for Racial Justice developed a definition of Educational Equity. In the coming weeks we will be working with community advisors, focus groups, staff, and community members to review this definition and to develop a set of questions that will function as a tool the district can use as a filter as we make decisions regarding policies, procedures, programs, and more. It is our goal that this work will provide guidance as we strive to further develop educational equity for our students.

On a related note, a team of teachers, administrators, support staff and students attended the annual Minnesota American Indian Education Association conference. The entire conference was infused with Ojibwe and Dakota traditions and was focused on how we can better serve American Indian youth and ensure that students and families can see themselves reflected in our schools. Topics such as culturally responsive instruction, micro-aggressions, community involvement, and much more were on the agenda. While at the conference, Edye Howes, Coordinator of American Indian Education for Duluth Public Schools, was named Administrator of the Year! We are fortunate to have her leadership as we work to eliminate the achievement gap and raise graduation rates of our American Indian students.

In the coming weeks there will be many opportunities to see and hear the amazing talents of our students. There will be band, orchestra, and choir concerts. Our students will also be performing at events throughout the community. Our elementary schools will host events as well. I always

enjoy seeing all the people who come to see student artwork in the halls and to watch the programs. People can check school websites or contact the school for dates and times of performances and programs.

And now let's hear from our high schools:

East High School: Student Representative Cabrilla Francis stated the Student Forum discussed the parking policy at the school and the upcoming student representative elections. Also discussed were lunch line efficiency, bullying, cyber bullying and ideas for volunteering in the community. Six students were named Commended Students in the 2018 National Merit Scholarship Program. Freshmen got to familiarize themselves with the canines at the school that are there for drug searches. The Beauty and the Beast play was amazing and very successful. Cheerleaders have been doing fundraising events to raise money for their trip to Nationals, and boys' soccer placed third in the state! The students had a successful blood donation drive and book/board games drive.

Denfeld High School: Student Representative Ben Emmel stated the theatre department's production of High School Musical was an incredible success. Before attending the production, the Denfeld's Link Crew had an event for freshmen to watch the movie High School Musical followed by a spaghetti dinner. Afterwards all attended the play. Over 100 freshmen participated and the hope is that it will become an annual event. Sadly, fall sports have ended but winter sports have started. The diving and swimming teams each had a representative at this year's state meets. Also two students took second place in their debate category at the Twin Cities debate competition. Parent and teacher conferences were very successful. The band and dance teams participated in the Christmas City of the North Parade. The Halloween themed Fall Ball was also a success. Student government members trick or treated around the Denfeld neighborhood for canned goods to start their food drive. Over 1,200 food items were collected and donated to Chum.

Education Committee Report November 2017

Member Loeffler-Kemp presented the Education Committee Report, a copy of same being in the hands of each School Board member.

RESOLUTION

Acceptance of Grant Awards to Duluth Public Schools

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statute 465.03 requires a school district to accept grants by resolution expressed in the terms prescribed by the donor in full; and,

WHEREAS, acceptance of the grant in accordance with the donor's terms is in the best interest of the Duluth Public Schools:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Duluth Public Schools does accept the below-described grant from said organization in accordance with the terms set forth herein.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Duluth Public Schools wishes to extend its grateful appreciation to this organization.

Organization	Author/ Contact	Project Title	Award Amount	Terms
Northland Foundation	Becky Gamache	Expanding Outdoor Opportunities for Preschoolers and Their Families	\$3,000.00	Funds will be used to purchase 83 rain suits for use by Duluth Head Start students at Stowe and Barnes.

Resolution E-11-17-3490

November 21, 2017

M-Loeffler-Kemp, S-Welty, to approve Resolution E-11-17-3490 – Acceptance of Grant Awards to Duluth Public Schools. Upon a vote, the same was approved 6-0 as follows: Yea: Harala, Johnston, Kirby, Loeffler-Kemp, Oswald, Welty

Nay: None

Absent: Sandstad

M-Loeffler-Kemp, S-Sandstad, to approve the Education Committee Report. Upon a vote, the remainder of the Education Committee Report was approved – unanimously.

<u>Human Resources Committee Report</u> November 2017

Member Sandstad presented the Human Resources Committee report, a copy of same being in the hands of each School Board member.

M-Sandstad, S-Welty, to approve the Human Resource Committee Report.

Member Oswald withheld Item 2.A.

Member Oswald withheld Item 2.A. Approval of Hourly-Substitute Pay Rate Sheet, Minnesota Minimum Wage Increase effective 1/1/18 to make a motion.

M-Oswald, S-Johnston, motioned "To provide a percentage raise equal to the raise given to teachers each year for all hourly non-substitute employees remaining in the same hourly position they held the prior school year. The first raise will begin August 2018 and continue annually on an employee's anniversary date. It will not be retroactive."

Discussion took place regarding this item.

M-Oswald, S-Sandstad, to postpone both the motion "To provide a percentage raise equal to the raise given to teachers each year for all hourly non-substitute employees remaining in the same hourly position they held the prior school year. The first raise will begin August 2018 and continue annually on an employee's anniversary date. It will not be

<u>retroactive.</u>" and discussion of the Hourly-Substitute Pay Rate Sheet until the December 2017 Board meeting.

Discussion took place regarding this item.

Upon a vote, the motion to postpone both the motion "To provide a percentage raise equal to the raise given to teachers each year for all hourly non-substitute employees remaining in the same hourly position they held the prior school year. The first raise will begin August 2018 and continue annually on an employee's anniversary date. It will not be retroactive." and the discussion of the Hourly-Substitute Pay Rate Sheet until the December 2017 Board meeting, the same was approved 4-3 as follows:

Yea: Johnston, Oswald, Sandstad, Welty Nay: Harala, Loeffler-Kemp, Kirby

Discussion took place regarding this item.

M-Sandstad, S-Harala, to approve the Hourly-Substitute Pay Rate Sheet separately from the motion "To provide a percentage raise equal to the raise given to teachers each year for all hourly non-substitute employees remaining in the same hourly position they held the prior school year. The first raise will begin August 2018 and continue annually on an employee's anniversary date. It will not be retroactive.".

Discussion took place regarding this item.

Upon a vote, the same was approved 6-1 as follows:

Yea: Harala, Kirby, Johnston, Loeffler-Kemp, Sandstad, Welty

Nay: Oswald

Upon a vote, the remainder of the Human Resources report was approved – unanimously.

Business Committee Report November 2017

Member Harala presented the Business Committee Report, a copy of same being in the hands of each School Board member.

Member Harala presented the resolution:

RESOLUTION

Acceptance of Donations to Duluth Public Schools

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statute 465.03 requires a school district to accept donations by resolution expressed in the terms prescribed by the donor in full; and,

WHEREAS, acceptance of the donations in accordance with the donor's terms is in the best interest of the Duluth Public Schools:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Duluth Public Schools does accept the below-described donations from said organizations in accordance with the terms set forth herein.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Duluth Public Schools wishes to extend its grateful appreciation to these organizations.

SCHOOL	DONOR	AMOUNT	RESTRICTION
Denfeld	Denfeld Class of 1967	\$300.00	Key Club
District-wide	ct-wide AAR Corporation		To bus 5th grade to Starbase at the 148th Airbase
East	Rebecca & Martin Gomez	\$100.00	Association
East	The Jamar Co.	\$150.00	Student Council
East	Chemistry students	\$207.00	Chemistry
East	MCCU	\$5.00	None
East	The Grooming Shack	\$30.00	Student Government
East	Kenwood Dental	\$50.00	Student Government
East	Anne & Cory Thomas	\$50.00	Student Government
East	Heekyoung Hahn & Jayce Getz	\$50.00	Student Government
East	Benjamin & Rachel Nelson	\$50.00	Student Government
East	Robert & Charlotte Lake	\$50.00	Student Government
East	Ronald & Tawnyea Lake	\$50.00	Student Government
East	Keith & Heather Salfer	\$50.00	Student Government
East	Daniel & Karen Landgren	\$50.00	Student Government
East	Geri and Shawn McGivern	\$75.00	Student Government
East	Roderick & Rhonda Alstead	\$100.00	Student Government
East	Joel Brekken Agency	\$100.00	Student Government
East	Gables Ivy Real Estate	\$100.00	Student Government
East	Mark & Denise Elliot	\$100.00	Student Government
East	Kenneth & Kristine Hegman	\$100.00	Student Government
East	Amundson Farms Inc	\$200.00	Student Government
East	Laurie Anderson	\$200.00	Student Government
East	Paul & Joan Scinocca	\$200.00	Student Government
East	Sutherland	\$200.00	Student Government
East	Dr. Robin & Andrea Hendricks	\$200.00	Student Government
East	Steven Marshall	\$200.00	Student Government
East	Mary & Daniel Shaw	\$200.00	Student Government
East	Patrick & Kari Twomey	\$200.00	Student Government
East	Robert & Jean Stenberg	\$200.00	Student Government
East	Paul & Teresa Johnston	\$200.00	Student Government
East	Maney International	\$25.00	Student Government
East	Carlson Orthodontics	\$50.00	Student Government
East	Northern Engine and Supply	\$50.00	Student Government
East	Fischer Legal Services	\$60.00	Student Government
East	Jamar Company	\$75.00	Student Government
East	Outdoor Ventures Hayward	\$75.00	Student Government
East	River Road Storage	\$100.00	Student Government
East	Hannah Johnson Fabrics	\$100.00	Student Government
East	Center for Muscle and Joint Therap	y \$100.00	Student Government

East	Arrowhead Orthodontics	\$100.00	Student Government
East	Thomas Chiropractic	\$150.00	Student Government
East	St. Luke's	\$150.00	Student Government
East	Camille Zelen, DDS	\$200.00	Student Government
East	Pizza Luce	\$200.00	Student Government
East	Holden Agency	\$200.00	Student Government
East	Lakewalk Surgery	\$250.00	Student Government
East	Adventure Running - Andrew Holak	\$250.00	Cross Country SFA
East	Stewart-Taylor Company dba Duluth Sign	\$130.00	None
East	Duluth Library Foundation	\$130.00	None
T 34 A 1	Duluth Public Schools Fund	¢515.00	Michael Gordon/ building math
Laura MacArthur	Endowment Grants	\$515.00	skills with Legos
Laura MacArthur	Rachel Circle with Holy Cross Lutheran Church	In Kind	None
Laura MacArthur	Lloyd Simich	In Kind	None
Lester Park	Lori Amundson	\$100.00	None
Lester Park	Gail Blustin	\$100.00	None
Lester Park	Betsy & Eric Hill	\$50.00	None
Lester Park	Keaton Larson	\$23.00	None
Lester Park	Erin & John Pepelnjak	\$30.00	None
Lester Park	Amanda & Aaron Yates	\$50.00	None
Special Services	Kathy Mainella	In Kind	None
	Totals		

B-11-17-3492 November 21, 2017

M-Harala, S-Loeffler-Kemp, to approve Resolution B-11-17-3492 — Acceptance of Donations to Duluth Public Schools. Upon a vote, the same was approved — unanimously.

Member Harala presented the resolution:

RESOLUTION

Authorizing an Amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement with the State of Minnesota/Perpich Center for Arts Education

BE IT RESOLVED, by the School Board of Independent School District No. 709, St. Louis County, State of Minnesota, that the amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement between the State of Minnesota/Perpich Center for Arts Education and ISD 709 attached hereto is hereby approved.

Resolution B-11-17-3493

November 21, 2017

M-Harala, S-Loeffler-Kemp, to approve Resolution B-11-17-3493 — Authorizing an Amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement with the State of Minnesota/Perpich Center for Arts Education. Upon a vote, the same was approved — unanimously.

RESOLUTION

Providing for the Issuance, Sale and Delivery Of \$3,640,000 Taxable General Obligation Facilities Maintenance Bonds, Series 2017A; Establishing the Terms and Form Thereof; Creating a Construction Fund and Debt Service Fund Therefor; and Awarding the Sale Thereof

BE IT RESOLVED, by the School Board (the "Board") of Independent School District No. 709 (Duluth), St. Louis County, Minnesota (the "District"), as follows:

Section 1. Bond Purpose and Authorization.

- 1.01 A. The District, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 123B.595, and Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 475 (collectively, the "Act"), is authorized to issue general obligation bonds to provide funds to finance repairs and replacements contained in the District's 10-year facility plan under the Act, as updated (the "Plan"), as approved by the Board and Commissioner of Education. The Plan is incorporated in this resolution as though fully specified herein.
- B. The District has undertaken a program to (i) renovate the Rockridge Elementary building, and (ii) replace the Lakewood Elementary School roof (the "Project"). The School Board desires to obtain the financing for the Project through the Act.
- C. The Board has determined to issue its Taxable General Obligation Facilities Maintenance Bonds, Series 2017A (the "Bonds"), in the amount of \$3,640,000 pursuant to the Act to pay for the Project and costs of issuance of the Bonds, and to pledge the District's full faith and credit and power to levy direct ad valorem taxes to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds.
- 1.02 <u>Negotiated Sale</u>. The District elects to apply the exception to the public sale requirement contained in Section 475.60, Subdivision 2(9) of the Act, as the District has retained PMA Securities, Inc., to act as its independent financial advisor in connection with the sale of the Bonds.
- 1.03 <u>Parameters Resolution</u>. A resolution adopted by the Board on May 30, 2017, entitled "Resolution Regarding the Issuance of General Obligation Facilities Maintenance Bonds, Series 2017A," as amended by a resolution adopted by the Board on August 14, 2017, entitled "Resolution Amending Resolution #B-5-17-3450 Regarding the Issuance of General Obligation Facilities Maintenance Bonds, Series 2017A" (collectively, the "Parameters Resolution"), which authorized any officer of the District and the Superintendent or CFO/Executive Director of Business Services to serve as a pricing committee to approve the sale of the Bonds to Northland Securities, Inc., and execute a bond purchase agreement provided that the principal amount does not exceed \$3,640,000 and the TIC on the Bonds does not exceed 3.5%.

1.04 Award of Sale.

- A. Pursuant to the exception to the public sale requirement described in Section 1.02 hereof and the Parameters Resolution, the District has solicited and received an offer from Northland Securities, Inc. of Minneapolis, Minnesota (the "Purchaser"), to purchase the Bonds at a cash price of \$3,642,394.55, plus accrued interest on the total principal amount from November 29, 2017, to the date of delivery upon the terms and conditions hereafter specified in this Resolution. The Board, after due consideration, finds that the conditions of the Parameters Resolution have been satisfied and that such offer is reasonable and proper and the offer of the Purchaser is accepted.
- B. The actions of the officers of the District and the Superintendent and CFO/Executive Director of Business Services taken with respect to the execution on the part of the District of a contract for the sale of the Bonds in accordance with the Purchaser's proposal and the Parameters Resolution, are ratified and approved.

Section 2. Terms of the Bonds.

2.01 <u>Designation; Denominations; Maturities; Interest Rates.</u>

- A. The Bonds to be issued hereunder shall be issued as fully-registered bonds designated the \$3,640,000 Taxable General Obligation Facilities Maintenance Bonds, Series 2017A, dated November 29, 2017, as the date of original issue, issued in the denomination of \$5,000, or any integral multiple thereof, in fully registered form and lettered and numbered R-1 and upward.
- B. The Bonds shall mature on February 1 in the years and amounts stated below and shall bear interest from the most recent Interest Payment Date (as hereinafter defined) to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, or, if no interest has been paid or provided for, from the date of original issue until paid at the rates per annum set forth below opposite such years and amounts, as follow:

Year	Principal Amount	Interest Rate
2018	\$755,000	2.00%
2019	690,000	2.35%
2020	710,000	3.00%
2021	730,000	3.00%
2022	755,000	3.00%

2.02 Interest Payment Dates; Record Date.

A. The Bonds shall bear interest at the annual rates stated therefor in Section 2.01. The interest shall be payable semiannually on February 1 and August 1 in each year (each herein referred to as an "Interest Payment Date") commencing on February 1, 2018. Interest will be computed upon the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months and will be rounded pursuant to the rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. Interest will be payable in the manner set forth in the form of Bond and this Section.

- B. The Bond Registrar designated below shall make all interest payments with respect to the Bonds by check or draft mailed to the person in whose name each Bond is registered (the "Holder") and in each case at the address shown on the bond registration records maintained by the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the 15th day (whether or not on a business day) of the calendar month next preceding the Interest Payment Date (the "Regular Record Date"). Any such interest not so timely paid or duly provided for shall cease to be payable to the person who is the Holder thereof as of the Regular Record Date, and shall be payable to the person who is the Holder thereof at the close of business on a date fixed for the payment of such defaulted interest (the "Special Record Date"). The Special Record Date shall be fixed by the Bond Registrar whenever money becomes available for payment of the defaulted interest and notice of the Special Record Date shall be given by the Bond Registrar to the Holders not less than 10 days prior thereto. The term "Holder" shall also include those lawfully entitled to take actions on behalf of the beneficial owners of the Bonds for purposes of any consent or approvals given by Holders.
- C. If the date for payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the City of New York, New York, or the city where the principal office of the Bond Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which such banking institutions are authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment.
- 2.03 <u>Redemption</u>. The Bonds shall not be subject to optional redemption and prepayment before maturity.

Section 3. Registration; Global Book Entry System.

- Association, of St. Paul, Minnesota, as registrar, authenticating agent and transfer agent for the Bonds (such bank or its successors is herein referred to as the "Bond Registrar"), and shall do so until a successor Bond Registrar is duly appointed, all pursuant to a contract which the District and the Bond Registrar shall execute which is consistent herewith and which the Chair and Clerk are hereby authorized to execute and deliver. A successor Bond Registrar shall be a bank or trust company eligible for designation as bond registrar pursuant to the Act. The terms of the appointment of the successor Bond Registrar and its duties shall be specified in a contract between the District and such successor Bond Registrar that is consistent herewith and that the Chair and Clerk are hereby authorized to execute and deliver. The Bond Registrar, which may act through an agent, shall also serve as paying agent until and unless a successor paying agent is duly appointed. The Bond Registrar shall pay principal and interest on the Bonds to the registered Holders (or record Holders) of the Bonds in the manner set forth herein. The District agrees to pay the reasonable and customary charges for the services of such Bond Registrar.
- 3.02 <u>Designation of Depository</u>. DTC, a Securities and Exchange Commission designated depository, a limited purpose New York trust company, a member of the Federal Reserve System, and a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, is hereby designated as the depository (the "Depository") with respect to the Bonds.

3.03 <u>Authentication of Bonds</u>. No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless or until either (i) the Bond Registrar's authentication certificate on such Bond, substantially set forth in Section 4.01 hereof, shall have been duly executed by an authorized representative of the Bond Registrar or (ii) the Bonds have been manually executed by at least one officer of the Board. Authentication certificates on different Bonds need not be signed by the same representative. The Bond Registrar shall authenticate each Bond by execution of the Certificate of Authentication on the Bond and shall date each Bond in the space provided as of the date on which the Bond is registered. For purposes of delivering the original Bonds, the Bond Registrar shall insert as the date of registration the date of original issue. The executed Authentication Certificate or the manual signature of at least one officer of the Board on each Bond shall be conclusive evidence that it has been authenticated and delivered under this Resolution.

3.04 Bond Register; Transfer; Exchange.

- A. The District shall cause to be kept by the Bond Registrar at its principal office, a bond register in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as the Bond Registrar may prescribe, the District shall provide for the registration of the Bonds and the registration of transfers of the Bonds entitled to be registered or transferred as herein provided. In the event of the resignation or removal of the Bond Registrar or its incapability of acting as such, the bond registration records shall be maintained at the office of the successor Bond Registrar as may be appointed by the Board.
- B. Upon surrender for transfer of any Bond at the principal corporate office of the Bond Registrar, the District shall execute, if required by law or this Resolution, and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate, if required by law or this Resolution, date (in the space designated Date of Registration) and deliver, in the name(s) of the designated transferee or transferees, one or more new Bonds of the like aggregate principal amount having the same stated maturity and interest rate, as requested by the transferor; provided, however, that no Bond may be registered in blank or in the name of "bearer" or similar designation. Transfer of a Bond may be made on the District's books by the registered owner in person or by the registered owner's attorney duly authorized in writing. Transfers shall be subject to reasonable regulations of the District contained in any agreement with, or notice to, the Bond Registrar, including regulations which permit the Bond Registrar to close its transfer books between record dates and payment dates. The District and the Bond Registrar shall not be required to make any transfer or exchange of any Bonds called for redemption or to make any such exchange or transfer of the Bonds during the 15 days next preceding the date of the first publication or the mailing (if there is no publication) of notice of redemption in the case of a proposed redemption of the Bonds.
- C. Every Bond presented or surrendered for transfer or exchange shall be duly endorsed or be accompanied by a written instrument of transfer, in form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, duly executed by the registered owner thereof, with signature guaranteed, or by the registered Holder's attorney duly authorized in writing, and shall include written instructions as to the details of the transfer of the Bond. When any Bond is presented to the Bond Registrar for transfer, the Bond Registrar may refuse to transfer the same until it is satisfied that the endorsement on such Bond or separate instrument of transfer is valid and genuine and that the requested transfer is legally authorized. The Bond Registrar shall incur no liability for the refusal, in good faith, to make transfers which it, in its judgment, deems improper or unauthorized.

- D. At the option of the Holder, replacement Bonds may be exchanged for Bonds of any authorized denomination or denominations of a like aggregate principal amount and stated maturity, upon surrender of the Bonds to be exchanged at the principal office of the Bond Registrar. Whenever any Bonds are so surrendered for exchange, the District shall execute (if required by law or this Resolution), and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate (if required by law or this Resolution), date (in the space designated Date of Registration) and deliver the replacement Bonds which the Holder making the exchange is entitled to receive. Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co. may not be exchanged for Bonds of smaller denominations.
- E. All Bonds surrendered upon any exchange or transfer provided for in this Resolution shall be promptly canceled by the Bond Registrar and thereafter disposed of as directed by the District.
- F. Each Bond delivered upon transfer of or in exchange for or in lieu of any other Bond shall carry all of the rights to interest, accrued and unpaid and to accrue, which are carried by such other Bond. All Bonds delivered in exchange for or upon transfer of Bonds shall be valid general obligations of the District evidencing the same debt, shall be entitled to the same benefits under this Resolution as the Bonds surrendered for such exchange or transfer, and shall carry all the rights to interest accrued and unpaid, and to accrue, which were carried by such other Bonds.
- G. The Bond Registrar may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection with the transfer or exchange of any Bond and any legal or unusual costs regarding transfers and lost bonds.
- H. Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co. may not after their original delivery, be transferred or exchanged except in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Letter of Representations and:
 - (i) upon exchange of a Bond after a partial redemption, if provided in Section 2.03 of this Resolution;
 - (ii) to any successor of the Depository (or its nominee) or any substitute depository (a "Substitute Depository") designated pursuant to clause (iii) below; provided that any successor of the Depository or any Substitute Depository must be both a "clearing corporation" as defined in the Minnesota Uniform Commercial Code, Minnesota Statutes, Section 336.8-102, and a qualified and registered "clearing agency" as provided in Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;
 - (iii) to a Substitute Depository designated by and acceptable to the District upon (a) the determination by the Depository that the Bonds shall no longer be eligible for its depository services or (b) a determination by the District that the Depository is no longer able to carry out its functions; provided that any Substitute Depository must be qualified to act as such, as provided in subclause (ii) above; or
 - (iv) in the event that (a) the Depository shall resign or discontinue its services for the Bonds or be declared no longer able to carry out its functions and. the District is

unable to locate a Substitute Depository within two months following the resignation or discontinuance or determination of noneligibility, or (b) the District determines in its sole discretion that (1) the continuation of the book-entry system described herein might adversely affect the interests of the beneficial owners of the Bonds, or (2) it is in the best interests of the beneficial owners of the Bonds that they be able to obtain certificated Bonds, then the District shall notify the Holders of its determination and of the availability of replacement Bonds to Holders. The District, the Bond Registrar and the Depository shall cooperate in providing replacement Bonds to Holders requesting the same and the registration, transfer and exchange of such Bonds shall thereafter be conducted as provided in Section 3 of this Resolution.

I. In the event of the designation of a Substitute Depository as authorized by clause H., the Bond Registrar, upon presentation of a Bond, shall register their transfer to the Substitute Depository, and the Substitute Depository shall be treated as the Depository for all purposes and functions under this Resolution. The Letter of Representations shall not apply to the Substitute Depository unless the District and the Substitute Depository so agree, and the execution of a similar agreement is hereby authorized.

3.05 Persons Deemed Owners; Payment.

- A. The District and the Bond Registrar may treat the person in whose name any Bond is registered as the owner of such Bond for the purpose of receiving payment of principal of and premium, if any, and interest (subject to the payment provisions in Section 2.02 above), on such Bond and for all other purposes whatsoever, whether or not such Bond shall be overdue, and neither the District nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by notice to the contrary.
- B. For the purposes of all actions, consents and other matters affecting Holders of Bonds issued under this Resolution as from time to time supplemented, other than payments, redemptions and purchases, the District may (but shall not be obligated to) treat as the Holder of a Bond the beneficial owner of the Bond instead of the person in whose name the Bond is registered. For that purpose, the District may ascertain the identity of the beneficial owner of the Bond by such means as the Bond Registrar in its sole discretion deems appropriate, including but not limited to a certificate from the Depository or other person in whose name the Bond is registered identifying such beneficial owner.
- C. The principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be payable by the Bond Registrar in such funds as are legal tender for the payment of debts due the United States of America. The District shall pay the reasonable and customary charges of the Bond Registrar for the disbursement of principal and interest.

3.06 Use of Global Book-Entry System.

A. There has been previously submitted to the District a form of Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations (the "Representation Letter") between the District and the Depository setting forth various matters relating to the Depository and its role with respect to the Bonds. The terms and conditions of the Representation Letter are ratified.

- B. All of the Bonds shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC. Payment of interest on and principal of any Bond registered in the name of Cede & Co. shall be made by wire transfer or New York Clearing House or equivalent same day funds by 10:00 a.m. CT or as soon as possible thereafter following the Bond Registrar's receipt of funds from the District on each Interest Payment Date to the account of Cede & Co. on each Interest Payment Date at the address indicated in or pursuant to the Letter of Representations.
- C. So long as DTC is the Depository or it or its nominee is the Holder of any Bonds, the District shall comply with the provisions of the Letter of Representations, as it may be amended or supplemented from time to time.
- D. Additional matters with respect to, among other things, notices, consents and approvals by Holders and payments on the Bonds are set forth in the Letter of Representations.
- 3.07 <u>Mutilated, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds</u>. If a Bond becomes mutilated or is destroyed, stolen or lost, the Bond Registrar will deliver a new Bond of like amount, number, maturity date and tenor in exchange and substitution for and upon cancellation of the mutilated Bond or in lieu of and in substitution for any Bond destroyed, stolen or lost, upon the payment of the reasonable expenses and charges of the Bond Registrar and the District in connection therewith, including the cost of printing new Bonds; and, in the case of a Bond destroyed, stolen or lost, upon filing with the Bond Registrar and the District of evidence satisfactory to it and the District that the Bond was destroyed, stolen or lost, and of the ownership thereof, and upon furnishing to the Bond Registrar of an appropriate bond or indemnity in form, substance and amount satisfactory to it and the District and as provided by law, in which both the District and the Bond Registrar must be named as obligees. Bonds so surrendered to the Bond Registrar will be canceled by the Bond Registrar and evidence of such cancellation must be given to the District. If the mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost Bond has already matured or been called for redemption in accordance with its terms, it is not necessary to issue a new Bond prior to payment.

Section 4. <u>Preparation, Delivery and Form of the Bonds.</u>

4.01 The Bonds shall be printed or typewritten in substantially the following form:

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA STATE OF MINNESOTA COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709 (DULUTH)
TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION FACILITIES MAINTENANCE BOND
SERIES 2017A

R			\$
Rate	Maturity Date	Date of Original Issue	CUSIP
%	February 1, 20	November 29, 2017	

REGISTERED OWNER: CEDE & CO.

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: _____ DOLLARS

Independent School District No. 709 (Duluth), a public corporation and political subdivision of the State of Minnesota and located in St. Louis County, with its administrative offices located in Duluth, Minnesota (the "District"), certifies that it is indebted and for value received, promises to pay to the registered owner specified above or on the Registration Certificate attached hereto, or registered assigns, in the manner hereinafter set forth, the principal amount specified above, on the maturity date specified above, and to pay interest thereon semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each year (each, an "Interest Payment Date") commencing on February 1, 2018, at the rate per annum specified above, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months, until the principal amount is paid or has been provided for. This Bond will bear interest from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, or, if no interest has been paid or provided for, from the date of original issue hereof set forth above.

Payment. The principal of and premium, if any, on this Bond are payable by wire transfer (or other agreed means of payment) on each payment date no later than 12:00 noon (New York, New York time) upon presentation and surrender hereof at the office of U.S. Bank National Association, St. Paul, Minnesota, as registrar, paying agent, authenticating agent and transfer agent (the "Bond Registrar"), or at the office of such successor bond registrar as may be designated by the District. Interest on this Bond will be paid on each Interest Payment Date (by 12:00 noon, New York, New York time) by wire transfer (or other agreed means of payment) to the person in whose name this Bond is registered (the "Holder" or "Bondholder") on the registration books of the District maintained by the Bond Registrar and at the address appearing thereon at the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding such Interest Payment Date (the "Regular Record Date"). Any interest not so timely paid or duly provided for shall cease to be payable to the person who is the Holder hereof as of the Regular Record Date, and shall be payable to the person who is the Holder thereof at the close of business on a date fixed for the payment of the defaulted interest, and notice of the Special Record Date shall be given by the Bond Registrar to the Holders not less than 10 days prior thereto. The Bond Registrar shall make all payments with respect to this Bond without, except for payment of principal on the Bond, the presentation or surrender of this Bond, and all such payments shall discharge the obligations of the District to the extent of the payments so made. The principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this Bond are payable in lawful money of the United States of America. For the prompt and full payment of such principal and interest as they become due, the full faith and credit of the District are irrevocably pledged.

Date of Payment Not Business Day. If the date for payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on this Bond shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the City of New York, New York, or the city where the principal office of the Bond Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which such banking institutions are authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment.

No Optional Redemption. The Bonds shall not be subject to optional redemption before maturity.

Issuance; Purpose. This Bond is one of a series issued by the District in the total aggregate amount of \$3,640,000, all of like original issue date and tenor, except as to number, maturity date, redemption privilege, denomination and interest rate, pursuant to: (i) the authority contained in Minnesota Statutes, Section 123B.595 and Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 475; (ii) the Constitution of the State of Minnesota and all other laws thereunto enabling; and (iii) an authorizing resolution adopted by the governing body of the District on November 21, 2017 (the "Resolution"), and is issued for the purpose of financing the costs to (i) renovate the Rockridge Elementary building, and (ii) replace the Lakewood Elementary School roof and for the payment of the interest cost of the Bonds. The principal of and interest on the Bonds are payable from ad valorem taxes levied upon all taxable property in the District and other funds, as set forth in the Resolution to which reference is made for a full statement of rights and powers thereby conferred.

General Obligation. This Bond constitutes a general obligation of the District, and to provide moneys for the prompt and full payment of the principal and interest when the same become due, the full faith and credit and taxing powers of the District have been and are hereby irrevocably pledged.

Minnesota School District Credit Enhancement Program. The District has qualified the Bonds for participation in the State of Minnesota program to preclude default of school district debt, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55 and has covenanted and bound itself to be bound by the provisions thereof. If the District is unable to make any portion of the principal or interest payment on the Bonds on or before any Interest Payment Date, the State of Minnesota has agreed to make such payment in the District's place.

Denominations; Exchange. The Bonds of this series are issued as fully registered bonds without coupons, in the denomination of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. The District will, at the request of the registered owner, issue one or more new fully registered Bonds in the name of the registered owner in the aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid principal balance of this Bond, and of like tenor except as to number and principal amount at the principal office

of the Bond Registrar, but only in the manner and subject to the limitations provided in the Resolution and the Letter of Representations. Reference is hereby made to the Resolution for a description of the rights and duties of the Bond Registrar. A copy of the Resolution is on file in the principal office of the Bond Registrar.

Registration; Transfer. This Bond shall be registered in the name of the payee on the books of the District by presenting this Bond for registration to the Bond Registrar, whose representative will endorse his or her name and note the date of registration opposite the name of the payee in the Registration Certificate attached hereto. Thereafter this Bond may be transferred by delivery with an assignment duly executed by the Holder or the Holder's legal representative, and the District and Bond Registrar may treat the Holder as the person exclusively entitled to exercise all the rights and powers of an owner until this Bond is presented with such assignment for registration of transfer, accompanied by assurance of the nature provided by law that the assignment is genuine and effective, and until such transfer is registered on said books and noted hereon by the Bond Registrar, all subject to the terms and conditions provided in the Resolution and the Letter of Representations and to reasonable regulations of the District contained in any agreement with, or notice to, the Bond Registrar. Thereupon the District shall execute (if required by law or the Resolution) and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate (if required by law or the Resolution) and deliver, in exchange for this Bond, one or more new fully registered Bonds in the name of the transferee, of an authorized denomination, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of this Bond, of the same maturity, and bearing interest at the same rate.

Fees Upon Transfer or Loss. The Bond Registrar may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection with the transfer or exchange of this Bond and any legal or unusual costs regarding transfers and lost Bonds. No service charge shall be made by the District for any transfer or exchange hereinbefore referred to but the District may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection therewith.

Treatment of Registered Owner. The District and Bond Registrar may treat the person in whose name this Bond is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment as herein provided and for all other purposes whatsoever, whether or not this Bond shall be overdue, and neither the District nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

Authentication. This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any security or benefit under the Resolution until either (i) the Bond Registrar's Authentication Certificate hereon shall have been executed by the Bond Registrar by one of its authorized representatives or (ii) the Bond has been manually executed by at least one officer of the Board of the District.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, RECITED, COVENANTED AND AGREED that all acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution and laws of the State of Minnesota to be done, to happen and to be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond in order to make it a valid and binding general obligation of the District enforceable in accordance with its terms, have been done, have happened and have been performed in regular and due form, time and manner as so required; that prior to the issuance hereof, a direct, annual irrepealable ad valorem tax has been duly levied upon all taxable property in the District in the years and amounts required by law; that, if necessary for payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds of this issue, additional ad valorem taxes may be levied upon all taxable property in the District without limitation as to rate or amount; and that the issuance of this Bond on the date of original issue hereof and the date of its actual original issuance and delivery, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation of indebtedness.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Independent School District No. 709 (Duluth), St. Louis County, State of Minnesota, by its School Board, has caused this Bond to be executed in its behalf by the manual or facsimile signatures of the Chair and Clerk, the District having no seal or said seal having been intentionally omitted as permitted by law.

ATTEST:	
(form – do not sign here)	(form – do not sign here)
Clerk	Chair
Date of Authentication:	
BOND REGISTRAR'S AUTHE	NTICATION CERTIFICATE

The Bond Registrar confirms that the books reflect the ownership of the Bond registered in the name of the owner named above in the principal amount and maturity date stated above and this Bond is one of the Bonds of the series issued pursuant to the Resolution herein above described.

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION St. Paul, Minnesota	
ByAuthorized Representative	

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE

This Bond must be registered as to both principal and interest in the name of the owner on the books to be kept by U.S. Bank National Association of St. Paul, Minnesota, as Bond Registrar. No transfer of this Bond shall be valid unless made on said books by the registered owner or the owner's attorney thereunto

duly authorized and similarly noted on the registration books. The ownership of the unpaid principal balance of this Bond and the interest accruing thereon is registered on the books of U.S. Bank National Association in the name of the registered owner last noted below.

<u>Date</u>	Register	ed Owner	Signature of Bond Registrar
11/29/201	Cede & Co. c/o The Depositor 570 Washington E Jersey City, NJ 07 Federal Taxpayer 13-2555119	Boulevard 310	pany
		ASSIGNM	ENT
FOR	VALUE RECEIV	ED, the un	dersigned sells, assigns and transfers
	(Name	and Address	s of Assignee)
			Security or Other Sying Number of Assignee
and appoint the said Bo	·		and does hereby irrevocably constitute attorney to transfer gistration thereof with full power of
Date	d:		
			NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name of the registered owner as it appears upon the face of the within Bond in every particular, without alteration or enlargement or any

change whatsoever.

Signature Guaranteed:

(Bank, Trust Company, member of National Securities Exchange)

Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, a New York corporation ("DTC"), to the District or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange or payment, and any bond issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL, inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein.

- 4.02 <u>Preparation and Execution</u>. The Bonds shall be prepared for execution in accordance with the approved form and shall be signed by the manual or facsimile signature of the Chair and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Clerk. The legal opinion of Fryberger, Buchanan, Smith & Frederick, P.A. shall be appended to or printed on each Bond. The corporate seal of the District may be omitted from the Bonds as permitted by law. In case any officer whose signature or a facsimile of whose signature shall appear on the Bonds shall cease to be an officer before delivery of the Bonds, such signature or facsimile shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes, the same as if he or she had remained in office until delivery.
- 4.03 <u>Delivery of the Bonds</u>. Delivery of the Bonds and payment of the purchase price shall be made at a place mutually satisfactory to the District and the Purchaser. Printed or typewritten and executed Bonds shall be furnished by the District without cost to the Purchaser. The Bonds, when prepared in accordance with this Resolution and executed, shall be delivered by or under the direction of the CFO/Executive Director of Business Services to the Purchaser upon receipt of the purchase price plus accrued interest.

Section 5. <u>Covenants, Accounts and Representations.</u>

5.01 <u>Construction Fund</u>. On receipt of the purchase price of the Bonds, the District shall credit the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds in the amount of \$3,638,395.00 to a separate construction fund, which is hereby created and designated as the "2017A Bonds Construction Fund" (the "Construction Fund"). Proceeds from the Bonds on deposit in the Construction Fund shall be used from time to time to pay the capital costs of the Project, including but not limited to, costs of construction, planning, architectural, engineering, legal, financial advisory and other professional services, printing and publication costs, and costs of issuance of the Bonds, as such become due.

5.02 Debt Service Fund.

- A. A separate debt service fund is hereby created and is designated as the "Taxable General Obligation School Facilities Maintenance Bonds, Series 2017A Debt Service Fund" (the "Debt Service Fund").
- B. There is hereby pledged and appropriated and there shall be credited to the Debt Service Fund: (i) the accrued interest in the amount of \$0.00; (ii) the rounding in the amount of \$3,999.55; (iii) money hereby transferred from the general fund reserve for long-term facilities maintenance in the amount of \$806,322.00 and in the annual amount determined by the School Board on or before November 1, commencing November 1, 2018 through November 1, 2021; (iv) the ad valorem taxes hereinafter levied; and (v) investment earnings on the monies identified in the foregoing clauses (i) through (iv). The proceeds of the Bonds described in clauses (i) and (ii) of the preceding sentence shall be used for payment of interest on the Bonds. Upon completion of the Project, any unspent proceeds in the Construction Fund shall be transferred to the Debt Service Fund.
- C. The money in the Debt Service Fund shall be used for no purpose other than the payment of principal and interest on the Bonds; provided, however, that if any payment of principal or interest shall become due when there is not sufficient money in the Debt Service Fund, the CFO/Executive Director of Business Services shall pay the same from any other funds of the District and said funds shall be reimbursed for such advance out of the proceeds of the taxes hereinafter levied.

5.03 <u>Tax Levy</u>.

- A. For the prompt and full payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds when due, the full faith and credit and taxing power of the District are hereby irrevocably pledged. There is hereby levied a direct, annual, ad valorem tax upon all taxable property within the District which shall be extended upon the tax rolls and collected with and as part of the other general property taxes in the District for the years and in the amounts set forth on *Exhibit A* hereto and incorporated herein by reference as though fully specified in this Section.
- B. Said levies are such that if collected in full they will produce between five and six percent in excess of the amount needed to meet when due the principal and interest payments on the Bonds.
- C. Such tax levies shall be irrevocable as long as any of the Bonds issued hereunder are outstanding and unpaid; provided, however, that on November 30 of each year, while any Bonds issued hereunder remain outstanding, the District may reduce or cancel the above levies to the extent of the amount which has been appropriated to and is on deposit in the Debt Service Fund to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds, and may direct the County Auditor to reduce the levy for such year by that amount.
- 5.04 <u>Investments</u>. Monies on deposit in the Construction Fund and in the Debt Service Fund may, at the discretion of the CFO/Executive Director of Business Services, be invested in securities permitted by Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 118A, that any such investments shall mature at such times and in such amounts as will permit for payment of Project costs and/or payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds when due.

5.05 Minnesota School District Credit Enhancement Program.

- A. The Board hereby covenants and obligates itself to be bound by the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55. The Board covenants and obligates itself to deposit with the Bond Registrar, as paying agent, three business days prior to any Interest Payment Date an amount sufficient to make the payment of principal and interest due or to notify the State of Minnesota Commissioner of Education not less than 15 working days prior to such Interest Payment Date that it is unable to make all or a portion of the payment due on such Interest Payment Date. The District understands that as a result of its covenant to be bound by the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55, the provisions of that section shall be binding as long as any Bonds of this issue remain outstanding.
- B. The Bond Registrar is authorized and directed to notify the Commissioner of Education if it becomes aware of a potential default in the payment of principal or interest on the Bonds or if, on the day two business days prior to the date a payment is due on the Bonds, there are insufficient funds to make that payment on deposit with the Bond Registrar.
- C. The District further covenants to comply with all procedures now or hereafter established by the Department of Management and Budget and the Department of Education of the State of Minnesota pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55 and otherwise to take such actions as necessary to comply with that section.

Section 6. <u>Certificates of Proceedings; Miscellaneous.</u>

- 6.01 <u>Filing of Resolution; County Auditor Certificate</u>. The Clerk is directed to file in the office of the County Auditor of St. Louis County a certified copy of this Resolution and such other information as the County Auditor may require, and to obtain from the County Auditor a certificate stating that the Bonds herein authorized have been duly entered on the Auditor's register and that the tax required by law for the payment of said Bonds has been levied.
- 6.02 <u>Authentication of Transcript</u>. The officers of the District are authorized and directed to prepare and furnish to the Purchaser and to Bond Counsel certified copies of all proceedings and records of the District relating to the authorization and issuance of the Bonds and to the financial condition and affairs of the District and other affidavits and certificates as may reasonably be requested to show the facts relating to the legality and marketability of the Bonds as such facts appear from the official books and records of the officers' custody or otherwise known to them. All of such certified copies, certificates and affidavits, including any heretofore furnished, constitute representations of the District as to the correctness of facts recited therein and the actions stated therein to have been taken.
- 6.03 Offering Materials. The Official Statement relating to the Bonds, on file with the Clerk and presented to this meeting, is hereby approved and deemed final, and the furnishing thereof to prospective purchasers of the Bonds is hereby ratified and confirmed, insofar as the same relates to the Bonds and the sale thereof. The Chair and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to certify that they have examined the Official Statement prepared and circulated in connection with the issuance and sale of the Bonds and that to the best of their knowledge and belief the Official Statement is a complete and accurate representation of the facts and representations made therein as of the date of the Official Statement.
- 6.04 <u>Absent or Disabled Officers</u>. In the event of the absence or disability of the Chair, Clerk or CFO/Executive Director of Business Services, such officers or members of the

Board as in the opinion of the District's attorney may act in their behalf shall, without further act or authorization, execute and deliver the Bonds, and do all things and execute all instruments and documents required to be done or executed by such absent or disabled officers.

6.05 <u>Defeasance</u>. When all of the Bonds have been discharged as provided in this Section, all pledges, covenants and other rights granted by this Resolution shall cease. The District may discharge its obligations with respect to any Bonds which are due on any date by depositing with the Bond Registrar on or before that date a sum sufficient for the payment thereof in full with interest accrued from the due date to the date of such deposit. The District may also discharge all Bonds of said issue at any time by irrevocably depositing in escrow with the Bond Registrar, for the purpose of paying all principal and interest due on such Bonds to maturity, a sum of cash or securities of the types described in Section 475.67 of the Act, as amended, in such aggregate amount, bearing interest at such rates and maturing or callable at the District's option on such dates as shall be required to provide funds sufficient for this purpose.

Section 7. <u>Continuing Disclosure</u>. The Board of the District acknowledges that the Bonds are subject to the continuing disclosure requirements of Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (17 C.F.R. § 240.15c2-12) (the "Rule"). The Rule governs the obligations of certain underwriters to require that issuers of municipal bonds enter into agreements for the benefit of the Holders to provide continuing disclosure with respect to the Bonds. To provide for the public availability of certain information relating to the Bonds and the security therefor and to permit underwriters of the Bonds to comply with the Rule, which will enhance the marketability of the Bonds, the Chair and the Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute a Continuing Disclosure Certificate substantially in the form of the Certificate currently on file in the office of the District.

EXHIBIT A
TAX LEVY SCHEDULE

Levy Year	Collection Year	Tax Levy
2016	2017	\$810,321*
2017	2018	810,669
2018	2019	814,643
2019	2020	813,278
2020	2021	816,533

^{*} To be paid from School Board appropriation of \$806,322 from general fund reserves for long-term facilities maintenance and \$3,999.55 from the rounding amount

M-Harala, S-Welty, to approve Resolution B-11-17-3494 — Providing for the Issuance, Sale and Delivery of \$3,640,000 Taxable General Obligation Facilities Maintenance Bonds, Series 2017A; Establishing the Terms and Form Thereof; Creating a Construction Fund and Debt Service Fund Therefor; and Awarding the Sale Thereof.

Discussion took place regarding this item.

Upon a vote, the same was approved – unanimously.

RESOLUTION

Providing for the Issuance, Sale and Delivery of \$615,000 Taxable General Obligation Capital Facilities Bonds, Series 2017B; Establishing the Terms and Form Thereof; Creating A Construction Fund and Debt Service Fund Therefor; and Awarding the Sale Thereof

BE IT RESOLVED, by the School Board (the "Board") of Independent School District No. 709 (Duluth), St. Louis County, Minnesota (the "District"), as follows:

Section 1. Bond Purpose and Authorization.

- 1.01 A. The District, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 123B.62, and Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 475 (collectively, the "Act"), is authorized to issue general obligation bonds to provide funds to finance capital improvements under the Act, including improvements and repairs to school sites and buildings, as approved by the Board and Commissioner of Education.
- B. The District has undertaken a program to repair and renovate the Rockridge Elementary building (the "Project"). The School Board desires to obtain the financing for the Project through the Act, and the Commissioner of Education has approved the Project to be financed with general obligation bonds.
- C. The Board has determined to issue its Taxable General Obligation Capital Facilities Bonds, Series 2017B (the "Bonds"), in the amount of \$615,000 pursuant to the Act to pay for the Project and costs of issuance of the Bonds, and to pledge the District's full faith and credit and power to levy direct ad valorem taxes to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds.
- 1.02 <u>Negotiated Sale</u>. The District elects to apply the exception to the public sale requirement contained in Section 475.60, Subdivision 2(9) of the Act, as the District has retained PMA Securities, Inc., to act as its independent financial advisor in connection with the sale of the Bonds.
- 1.03 <u>Parameters Resolution</u>. A resolution adopted by the Board on May 30, 2017, entitled "Resolution Regarding the Issuance of General Obligation Capital Facilities Bonds, Series 2017B," as amended by a resolution adopted by the Board on August 14, 2017, entitled "Resolution Amending Resolution #B-5-17-3451 Regarding the Issuance of General Obligation Capital Facilities Bonds, Series 2017B" (collectively, the "Parameters Resolution"), which authorized any officer of the District and the Superintendent or CFO/Executive Director of Business Services to serve as a pricing committee to approve the sale of the Bonds to Northland Securities, Inc., and execute a bond purchase agreement provided that the principal amount does not exceed \$615,000 and the TIC on the Bonds does not exceed 3.5%.

1.04 Award of Sale.

A. Pursuant to the exception to the public sale requirement described in Section 1.02 hereof and the Parameters Resolution, the District has solicited and received an offer from

Northland Securities, Inc. of Minneapolis, Minnesota (the "Purchaser"), to purchase the Bonds at a cash price of \$615,410.10, plus accrued interest on the total principal amount from November 29, 2017, to the date of delivery upon the terms and conditions hereafter specified in this Resolution. The Board, after due consideration, finds that the conditions of the Parameters Resolution have been satisfied and that such offer is reasonable and proper and the offer of the Purchaser is accepted.

B. The actions of the officers of the District and the Superintendent and CFO/Executive Director of Business Services taken with respect to the execution on the part of the District of a contract for the sale of the Bonds in accordance with the Purchaser's proposal and the Parameters Resolution, are ratified and approved.

Section 2. Terms of the Bonds.

2.01 <u>Designation; Denominations; Maturities; Interest Rates.</u>

- A. The Bonds to be issued hereunder shall be issued as fully-registered bonds designated the \$615,000 Taxable General Obligation Capital Facilities Bonds, Series 2017B, dated November 29, 2017, as the date of original issue, issued in the denomination of \$5,000, or any integral multiple thereof, in fully registered form and lettered and numbered R-1 and upward.
- B. The Bonds shall mature on February 1 in the years and amounts stated below and shall bear interest from the most recent Interest Payment Date (as hereinafter defined) to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, or, if no interest has been paid or provided for, from the date of original issue until paid at the rates per annum set forth below opposite such years and amounts, as follow:

Year	Principal Amount	Interest Rate
2018	\$130,000	2.00%
2019	115,000	2.35%
2020	120,000	3.00%
2021	125,000	3.00%
2022	125,000	3.00%

2.02 Interest Payment Dates; Record Date.

- A. The Bonds shall bear interest at the annual rates stated therefor in Section 2.01. The interest shall be payable semiannually on February 1 and August 1 in each year (each herein referred to as an "Interest Payment Date") commencing on February 1, 2018. Interest will be computed upon the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months and will be rounded pursuant to the rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. Interest will be payable in the manner set forth in the form of Bond and this Section.
- B. The Bond Registrar designated below shall make all interest payments with respect to the Bonds by check or draft mailed to the person in whose name each Bond is registered (the "Holder") and in each case at the address shown on the bond registration records

maintained by the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the 15th day (whether or not on a business day) of the calendar month next preceding the Interest Payment Date (the "Regular Record Date"). Any such interest not so timely paid or duly provided for shall cease to be payable to the person who is the Holder thereof as of the Regular Record Date, and shall be payable to the person who is the Holder thereof at the close of business on a date fixed for the payment of such defaulted interest (the "Special Record Date"). The Special Record Date shall be fixed by the Bond Registrar whenever money becomes available for payment of the defaulted interest and notice of the Special Record Date shall be given by the Bond Registrar to the Holders not less than 10 days prior thereto. The term "Holder" shall also include those lawfully entitled to take actions on behalf of the beneficial owners of the Bonds for purposes of any consent or approvals given by Holders.

- C. If the date for payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the City of New York, New York, or the city where the principal office of the Bond Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which such banking institutions are authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment.
- 2.03 <u>Redemption</u>. The Bonds shall not be subject to optional redemption and prepayment before maturity.

Section 3. Registration; Global Book Entry System.

- Association, of St. Paul, Minnesota, as registrar, authenticating agent and transfer agent for the Bonds (such bank or its successors is herein referred to as the "Bond Registrar"), and shall do so until a successor Bond Registrar is duly appointed, all pursuant to a contract which the District and the Bond Registrar shall execute which is consistent herewith and which the Chair and Clerk are hereby authorized to execute and deliver. A successor Bond Registrar shall be a bank or trust company eligible for designation as bond registrar pursuant to the Act. The terms of the appointment of the successor Bond Registrar and its duties shall be specified in a contract between the District and such successor Bond Registrar that is consistent herewith and that the Chair and Clerk are hereby authorized to execute and deliver. The Bond Registrar, which may act through an agent, shall also serve as paying agent until and unless a successor paying agent is duly appointed. The Bond Registrar shall pay principal and interest on the Bonds to the registered Holders (or record Holders) of the Bonds in the manner set forth herein. The District agrees to pay the reasonable and customary charges for the services of such Bond Registrar.
- 3.02 <u>Designation of Depository</u>. DTC, a Securities and Exchange Commission designated depository, a limited purpose New York trust company, a member of the Federal Reserve System, and a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, is hereby designated as the depository (the "Depository") with respect to the Bonds.

3.03 <u>Authentication of Bonds.</u> No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless or until either (i) the Bond Registrar's authentication certificate on such Bond, substantially set forth in Section 4.01 hereof, shall have been duly executed by an authorized representative of the Bond Registrar or (ii) the Bonds have been manually executed by at least one officer of the Board. Authentication certificates on different Bonds need not be signed by the same representative. The Bond Registrar shall authenticate each Bond by execution of the Certificate of Authentication on the Bond and shall date each Bond in the space provided as of the date on which the Bond is registered. For purposes of delivering the original Bonds, the Bond Registrar shall insert as the date of registration the date of original issue. The executed Authentication Certificate or the manual signature of at least one officer of the Board on each Bond shall be conclusive evidence that it has been authenticated and delivered under this Resolution.

3.04 Bond Register; Transfer; Exchange.

- A. The District shall cause to be kept by the Bond Registrar at its principal office, a bond register in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as the Bond Registrar may prescribe, the District shall provide for the registration of the Bonds and the registration of transfers of the Bonds entitled to be registered or transferred as herein provided. In the event of the resignation or removal of the Bond Registrar or its incapability of acting as such, the bond registration records shall be maintained at the office of the successor Bond Registrar as may be appointed by the Board.
- B. Upon surrender for transfer of any Bond at the principal corporate office of the Bond Registrar, the District shall execute, if required by law or this Resolution, and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate, if required by law or this Resolution, date (in the space designated Date of Registration) and deliver, in the name(s) of the designated transferee or transferees, one or more new Bonds of the like aggregate principal amount having the same stated maturity and interest rate, as requested by the transferor; provided, however, that no Bond may be registered in blank or in the name of "bearer" or similar designation. Transfer of a Bond may be made on the District's books by the registered owner in person or by the registered owner's attorney duly authorized in writing. Transfers shall be subject to reasonable regulations of the District contained in any agreement with, or notice to, the Bond Registrar, including regulations which permit the Bond Registrar to close its transfer books between record dates and payment dates. The District and the Bond Registrar shall not be required to make any transfer or exchange of any Bonds called for redemption or to make any such exchange or transfer of the Bonds during the 15 days next preceding the date of the first publication or the mailing (if there is no publication) of notice of redemption in the case of a proposed redemption of the Bonds.
- C. Every Bond presented or surrendered for transfer or exchange shall be duly endorsed or be accompanied by a written instrument of transfer, in form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, duly executed by the registered owner thereof, with signature guaranteed, or by the registered Holder's attorney duly authorized in writing, and shall include written instructions as to the details of the transfer of the Bond. When any Bond is presented to the Bond Registrar for transfer, the Bond Registrar may refuse to transfer the same until it is satisfied that the endorsement on such Bond or separate instrument of transfer is valid and genuine and that the requested transfer is legally authorized. The Bond Registrar shall incur no liability for the refusal, in good faith, to make transfers which it, in its judgment, deems improper or unauthorized.

- D. At the option of the Holder, replacement Bonds may be exchanged for Bonds of any authorized denomination or denominations of a like aggregate principal amount and stated maturity, upon surrender of the Bonds to be exchanged at the principal office of the Bond Registrar. Whenever any Bonds are so surrendered for exchange, the District shall execute (if required by law or this Resolution), and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate (if required by law or this Resolution), date (in the space designated Date of Registration) and deliver the replacement Bonds which the Holder making the exchange is entitled to receive. Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co. may not be exchanged for Bonds of smaller denominations.
- E. All Bonds surrendered upon any exchange or transfer provided for in this Resolution shall be promptly canceled by the Bond Registrar and thereafter disposed of as directed by the District.
- F. Each Bond delivered upon transfer of or in exchange for or in lieu of any other Bond shall carry all of the rights to interest, accrued and unpaid and to accrue, which are carried by such other Bond. All Bonds delivered in exchange for or upon transfer of Bonds shall be valid general obligations of the District evidencing the same debt, shall be entitled to the same benefits under this Resolution as the Bonds surrendered for such exchange or transfer, and shall carry all the rights to interest accrued and unpaid, and to accrue, which were carried by such other Bonds.
- G. The Bond Registrar may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection with the transfer or exchange of any Bond and any legal or unusual costs regarding transfers and lost bonds.
- H. Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co. may not after their original delivery, be transferred or exchanged except in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Letter of Representations and:
 - (i) upon exchange of a Bond after a partial redemption, if provided in Section 2.03 of this Resolution;
 - (ii) to any successor of the Depository (or its nominee) or any substitute depository (a "Substitute Depository") designated pursuant to clause (iii) below; provided that any successor of the Depository or any Substitute Depository must be both a "clearing corporation" as defined in the Minnesota Uniform Commercial Code, Minnesota Statutes, Section 336.8-102, and a qualified and registered "clearing agency" as provided in Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;
 - (iii) to a Substitute Depository designated by and acceptable to the District upon (a) the determination by the Depository that the Bonds shall no longer be eligible for its depository services or (b) a determination by the District that the Depository is no longer able to carry out its functions; provided that any Substitute Depository must be qualified to act as such, as provided in subclause (ii) above; or
 - (iv) in the event that (a) the Depository shall resign or discontinue its services for the Bonds or be declared no longer able to carry out its functions and. the District is

unable to locate a Substitute Depository within two months following the resignation or discontinuance or determination of noneligibility, or (b) the District determines in its sole discretion that (1) the continuation of the book-entry system described herein might adversely affect the interests of the beneficial owners of the Bonds, or (2) it is in the best interests of the beneficial owners of the Bonds that they be able to obtain certificated Bonds, then the District shall notify the Holders of its determination and of the availability of replacement Bonds to Holders. The District, the Bond Registrar and the Depository shall cooperate in providing replacement Bonds to Holders requesting the same and the registration, transfer and exchange of such Bonds shall thereafter be conducted as provided in Section 3 of this Resolution.

I. In the event of the designation of a Substitute Depository as authorized by clause H., the Bond Registrar, upon presentation of a Bond, shall register their transfer to the Substitute Depository, and the Substitute Depository shall be treated as the Depository for all purposes and functions under this Resolution. The Letter of Representations shall not apply to the Substitute Depository unless the District and the Substitute Depository so agree, and the execution of a similar agreement is hereby authorized.

3.05 Persons Deemed Owners; Payment.

- A. The District and the Bond Registrar may treat the person in whose name any Bond is registered as the owner of such Bond for the purpose of receiving payment of principal of and premium, if any, and interest (subject to the payment provisions in Section 2.02 above), on such Bond and for all other purposes whatsoever, whether or not such Bond shall be overdue, and neither the District nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by notice to the contrary.
- B. For the purposes of all actions, consents and other matters affecting Holders of Bonds issued under this Resolution as from time to time supplemented, other than payments, redemptions and purchases, the District may (but shall not be obligated to) treat as the Holder of a Bond the beneficial owner of the Bond instead of the person in whose name the Bond is registered. For that purpose, the District may ascertain the identity of the beneficial owner of the Bond by such means as the Bond Registrar in its sole discretion deems appropriate, including but not limited to a certificate from the Depository or other person in whose name the Bond is registered identifying such beneficial owner.
- C. The principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be payable by the Bond Registrar in such funds as are legal tender for the payment of debts due the United States of America. The District shall pay the reasonable and customary charges of the Bond Registrar for the disbursement of principal and interest.

3.06 Use of Global Book-Entry System.

A. There has been previously submitted to the District a form of Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations (the "Representation Letter") between the District and the Depository setting forth various matters relating to the Depository and its role with respect to the Bonds. The terms and conditions of the Representation Letter are ratified.

- B. All of the Bonds shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC. Payment of interest on and principal of any Bond registered in the name of Cede & Co. shall be made by wire transfer or New York Clearing House or equivalent same day funds by 10:00 a.m. CT or as soon as possible thereafter following the Bond Registrar's receipt of funds from the District on each Interest Payment Date to the account of Cede & Co. on each Interest Payment Date at the address indicated in or pursuant to the Letter of Representations.
- C. So long as DTC is the Depository or it or its nominee is the Holder of any Bonds, the District shall comply with the provisions of the Letter of Representations, as it may be amended or supplemented from time to time.
- D. Additional matters with respect to, among other things, notices, consents and approvals by Holders and payments on the Bonds are set forth in the Letter of Representations.
- 3.07 <u>Mutilated, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds</u>. If a Bond becomes mutilated or is destroyed, stolen or lost, the Bond Registrar will deliver a new Bond of like amount, number, maturity date and tenor in exchange and substitution for and upon cancellation of the mutilated Bond or in lieu of and in substitution for any Bond destroyed, stolen or lost, upon the payment of the reasonable expenses and charges of the Bond Registrar and the District in connection therewith, including the cost of printing new Bonds; and, in the case of a Bond destroyed, stolen or lost, upon filing with the Bond Registrar and the District of evidence satisfactory to it and the District that the Bond was destroyed, stolen or lost, and of the ownership thereof, and upon furnishing to the Bond Registrar of an appropriate bond or indemnity in form, substance and amount satisfactory to it and the District and as provided by law, in which both the District and the Bond Registrar must be named as obligees. Bonds so surrendered to the Bond Registrar will be canceled by the Bond Registrar and evidence of such cancellation must be given to the District. If the mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost Bond has already matured or been called for redemption in accordance with its terms, it is not necessary to issue a new Bond prior to payment.

Section 4. <u>Preparation, Delivery and Form of the Bonds.</u>

4.01 The Bonds shall be printed or typewritten in substantially the following form:

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA STATE OF MINNESOTA COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709 (DULUTH) TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL FACILITIES BOND, SERIES $2017\mathrm{B}$

R			\$	
<u>Rate</u>	Maturity Date	Date of Original Issue	<u>CUSIP</u>	
%	February 1, 20	November 29, 2017		

REGISTERED OWNER: CEDE & CO.

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: _____ DOLLARS

Independent School District No. 709 (Duluth), a public corporation and political subdivision of the State of Minnesota and located in St. Louis County, with its administrative offices located in Duluth, Minnesota (the "District"), certifies that it is indebted and for value received, promises to pay to the registered owner specified above or on the Registration Certificate attached hereto, or registered assigns, in the manner hereinafter set forth, the principal amount specified above, on the maturity date specified above, and to pay interest thereon semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each year (each, an "Interest Payment Date") commencing on February 1, 2018, at the rate per annum specified above, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months, until the principal amount is paid or has been provided for. This Bond will bear interest from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, or, if no interest has been paid or provided for, from the date of original issue hereof set forth above.

Payment. The principal of and premium, if any, on this Bond are payable by wire transfer (or other agreed means of payment) on each payment date no later than 12:00 noon (New York, New York time) upon presentation and surrender hereof at the office of U.S. Bank National Association, St. Paul, Minnesota, as registrar, paying agent, authenticating agent and transfer agent (the "Bond Registrar"), or at the office of such successor bond registrar as may be designated by the District. Interest on this Bond will be paid on each Interest Payment Date (by 12:00 noon, New York, New York time) by wire transfer (or other agreed means of payment) to the person in whose name this Bond is registered (the "Holder" or "Bondholder") on the registration books of the District maintained by the Bond Registrar and at the address appearing thereon at the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding such Interest Payment Date (the "Regular Record Date"). Any interest not so timely paid or duly provided for shall cease to be payable to the person who is the Holder hereof as of the Regular Record Date, and shall be payable to the person who is the Holder thereof at the close of business on a date fixed for the payment of the defaulted interest, and notice of the Special Record Date shall be given by the Bond Registrar to the Holders not less than 10 days prior thereto. The Bond Registrar shall make all payments with respect to this Bond without, except for payment of principal on the Bond, the presentation or surrender of this Bond, and all such payments shall discharge the obligations of the District to the extent of the payments so made. The principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this Bond are payable in lawful money of the United States of America. For the prompt and full payment of such principal and interest as they become due, the full faith and credit of the District are irrevocably pledged.

Date of Payment Not Business Day. If the date for payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on this Bond shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the City of New York, New York, or the city where the principal office of the Bond Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which such banking institutions are authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment.

No Optional Redemption. The Bonds shall not be subject to optional redemption before maturity.

Issuance; Purpose. This Bond is one of a series issued by the District in the total aggregate amount of \$615,000, all of like original issue date and tenor, except as to number, maturity date, redemption privilege, denomination and interest rate, pursuant to: (i) the authority contained in Minnesota Statutes, Section 123B.62 and Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 475; (ii) the Constitution of the State of Minnesota and all other laws thereunto enabling; and (iii) an authorizing resolution adopted by the governing body of the District on November 21, 2017 (the "Resolution"), and is issued for the purpose of financing the costs to renovate the Rockridge Elementary building and for the payment of the interest cost of the Bonds. The principal of and interest on the Bonds are payable from ad valorem taxes levied upon all taxable property in the District and other funds, as set forth in the Resolution to which reference is made for a full statement of rights and powers thereby conferred.

General Obligation. This Bond constitutes a general obligation of the District, and to provide moneys for the prompt and full payment of the principal and interest when the same become due, the full faith and credit and taxing powers of the District have been and are hereby irrevocably pledged.

Minnesota School District Credit Enhancement Program. The District has qualified the Bonds for participation in the State of Minnesota program to preclude default of school district debt, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55 and has covenanted and bound itself to be bound by the provisions thereof. If the District is unable to make any portion of the principal or interest payment on the Bonds on or before any Interest Payment Date, the State of Minnesota has agreed to make such payment in the District's place.

Denominations; Exchange. The Bonds of this series are issued as fully registered bonds without coupons, in the denomination of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. The District will, at the request of the registered owner, issue one or more new fully registered Bonds in the name of the registered owner in the aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid principal balance of this Bond, and of like tenor except as to number and principal amount at the principal office of the Bond Registrar, but only in the manner and subject to the limitations

provided in the Resolution and the Letter of Representations. Reference is hereby made to the Resolution for a description of the rights and duties of the Bond Registrar. A copy of the Resolution is on file in the principal office of the Bond Registrar.

Registration; Transfer. This Bond shall be registered in the name of the payee on the books of the District by presenting this Bond for registration to the Bond Registrar, whose representative will endorse his or her name and note the date of registration opposite the name of the payee in the Registration Certificate attached hereto. Thereafter this Bond may be transferred by delivery with an assignment duly executed by the Holder or the Holder's legal representative, and the District and Bond Registrar may treat the Holder as the person exclusively entitled to exercise all the rights and powers of an owner until this Bond is presented with such assignment for registration of transfer, accompanied by assurance of the nature provided by law that the assignment is genuine and effective, and until such transfer is registered on said books and noted hereon by the Bond Registrar, all subject to the terms and conditions provided in the Resolution and the Letter of Representations and to reasonable regulations of the District contained in any agreement with, or notice to, the Bond Registrar. Thereupon the District shall execute (if required by law or the Resolution) and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate (if required by law or the Resolution) and deliver, in exchange for this Bond, one or more new fully registered Bonds in the name of the transferee, of an authorized denomination, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of this Bond, of the same maturity, and bearing interest at the same rate.

Fees Upon Transfer or Loss. The Bond Registrar may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection with the transfer or exchange of this Bond and any legal or unusual costs regarding transfers and lost Bonds. No service charge shall be made by the District for any transfer or exchange hereinbefore referred to but the District may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection therewith.

Treatment of Registered Owner. The District and Bond Registrar may treat the person in whose name this Bond is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment as herein provided and for all other purposes whatsoever, whether or not this Bond shall be overdue, and neither the District nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

Authentication. This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any security or benefit under the Resolution until either (i) the Bond Registrar's Authentication Certificate hereon shall have been executed by the Bond Registrar by one of its authorized representatives or (ii) the Bond has been manually executed by at least one officer of the Board of the District.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, RECITED, COVENANTED AND AGREED that all acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution and laws of the State of Minnesota to be done, to happen and to be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond in order to make it a valid and binding general obligation of the District enforceable in accordance with its terms, have been done, have happened and have been performed in regular and due form, time and manner as so required; that prior to the issuance hereof, a direct, annual irrepealable ad valorem tax has been duly levied upon all taxable property in the District in the years and amounts required by law; that, if necessary for payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds of this issue, additional ad valorem taxes may be levied upon all taxable property in the District without limitation as to rate or amount; and that the issuance of this Bond on the date of original issue hereof and the date of its actual original issuance and delivery, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation of indebtedness.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Independent School District No. 709 (Duluth), St. Louis County, State of Minnesota, by its School Board, has caused this Bond to be executed in its behalf by the manual or facsimile signatures of the Chair and Clerk, the District having no seal or said seal having been intentionally omitted as permitted by law.

ATTEST:	
(form – do not sign here) Clerk	(form – do not sign here) Chair
Date of Authentication:	_
BOND REGISTRAR'S AUTHEN	VTICATION CERTIFICATE
The Bond Registrar confirms that the Bond registered in the name of the owner and maturity date stated above and this Bousties because the pursuant to the Resolution herein about the Resolution here	ond is one of the Bonds of the series
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION St. Paul, Minnesota	

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE

Authorized Representative

This Bond must be registered as to both principal and interest in the name of the owner on the books to be kept by U.S. Bank National Association of St. Paul, Minnesota, as Bond Registrar. No transfer of this Bond shall be valid unless made on said books by the registered owner or the owner's attorney thereunto

duly authorized and similarly noted on the registration books. The ownership of the unpaid principal balance of this Bond and the interest accruing thereon is registered on the books of U.S. Bank National Association in the name of the registered owner last noted below.

<u>Date</u>	Registered Owner	Signature of Bond Registrar
//2017	Cede & Co. c/o The Depository Trust C 570 Washington Boulevard Jersey City, NJ 07310 Federal Taxpayer I.D. No. 13-2555119	d
	ASSIGN	IMENT
	VALUE RECEIVED, the u	undersigned sells, assigns and transfers
	(Name and Addre	ess of Assignee)
	Soci	al Security or Other
	<u></u>	tifying Number of Assignee
and appoint the said Bon		r and does hereby irrevocably constitute attorney to transfer registration thereof with full power of
Dated	:	
		NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name of the registered owner as it appears upon the face of the within Bond in every particular, without alteration or enlargement or any change whatsoever.

Signature Guaranteed:

(Bank, Trust Company, member of National Securities Exchange)

Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, a New York corporation ("DTC"), to the District or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange or payment, and any bond issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL, inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein.

- 4.02 <u>Preparation and Execution</u>. The Bonds shall be prepared for execution in accordance with the approved form and shall be signed by the manual or facsimile signature of the Chair and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Clerk. The legal opinion of Fryberger, Buchanan, Smith & Frederick, P.A. shall be appended to or printed on each Bond. The corporate seal of the District may be omitted from the Bonds as permitted by law. In case any officer whose signature or a facsimile of whose signature shall appear on the Bonds shall cease to be an officer before delivery of the Bonds, such signature or facsimile shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes, the same as if he or she had remained in office until delivery.
- 4.03 <u>Delivery of the Bonds</u>. Delivery of the Bonds and payment of the purchase price shall be made at a place mutually satisfactory to the District and the Purchaser. Printed or typewritten and executed Bonds shall be furnished by the District without cost to the Purchaser. The Bonds, when prepared in accordance with this Resolution and executed, shall be delivered by or under the direction of the CFO/Executive Director of Business Services to the Purchaser upon receipt of the purchase price plus accrued interest.

Section 5. <u>Covenants, Accounts and Representations.</u>

5.01 <u>Construction Fund</u>. On receipt of the purchase price of the Bonds, the District shall credit the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds in the amount of \$612,215.00 to a separate construction fund, which is hereby created and designated as the "2017B Bonds Construction Fund" (the "Construction Fund"). Proceeds from the Bonds on deposit in the Construction Fund shall be used from time to time to pay the capital costs of the Project, including but not limited to, costs of construction, planning, architectural, engineering, legal, financial advisory and other professional services, printing and publication costs, and costs of issuance of the Bonds, as such become due.

5.02 Debt Service Fund.

- A. A separate debt service fund is hereby created and is designated as the "Taxable General Obligation School Capital Facilities Bonds, Series 2017B Debt Service Fund" (the "Debt Service Fund").
- B. There is hereby pledged and appropriated and there shall be credited to the Debt Service Fund: (i) the accrued interest in the amount of \$0.00; (ii) the rounding in the amount of \$3,195.10; (iii) money hereby transferred from the general fund reserve for operating capital purposes in the amount of \$136,272.00 and in the annual amount determined by the School Board on or before November 1, commencing November 1, 2018 through November 1, 2021; (iv) the ad valorem taxes hereinafter levied; and (v) investment earnings on the monies identified in the foregoing clauses (i) through (iv). The proceeds of the Bonds described in clauses (i) and (ii) of the preceding sentence shall be used for payment of interest on the Bonds. Upon completion of the Project, any unspent proceeds in the Construction Fund shall be transferred to the Debt Service Fund.
- C. The money in the Debt Service Fund shall be used for no purpose other than the payment of principal and interest on the Bonds; provided, however, that if any payment of principal or interest shall become due when there is not sufficient money in the Debt Service Fund, the CFO/Executive Director of Business Services shall pay the same from any other funds of the District and said funds shall be reimbursed for such advance out of the proceeds of the taxes hereinafter levied.

5.03 Tax Levy.

- A. For the prompt and full payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds when due, the full faith and credit and taxing power of the District are hereby irrevocably pledged. There is hereby levied a direct, annual, ad valorem tax upon all taxable property within the District which shall be extended upon the tax rolls and collected with and as part of the other general property taxes in the District for the years and in the amounts set forth on *Exhibit A* hereto and incorporated herein by reference as though fully specified in this Section.
- B. Said levies are such that if collected in full they will produce between five and six percent in excess of the amount needed to meet when due the principal and interest payments on the Bonds.
- C. Such tax levies shall be irrevocable as long as any of the Bonds issued hereunder are outstanding and unpaid; provided, however, that on November 30 of each year, while any Bonds issued hereunder remain outstanding, the District may reduce or cancel the above levies to the extent of the amount which has been appropriated to and is on deposit in the Debt Service Fund to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds, and may direct the County Auditor to reduce the levy for such year by that amount.
- 5.04 <u>Investments</u>. Monies on deposit in the Construction Fund and in the Debt Service Fund may, at the discretion of the CFO/Executive Director of Business Services, be invested in securities permitted by Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 118A, that any such investments shall mature at such times and in such amounts as will permit for payment of Project costs and/or payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds when due.

5.05 Minnesota School District Credit Enhancement Program.

- A. The Board hereby covenants and obligates itself to be bound by the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55. The Board covenants and obligates itself to deposit with the Bond Registrar, as paying agent, three business days prior to any Interest Payment Date an amount sufficient to make the payment of principal and interest due or to notify the State of Minnesota Commissioner of Education not less than 15 working days prior to such Interest Payment Date that it is unable to make all or a portion of the payment due on such Interest Payment Date. The District understands that as a result of its covenant to be bound by the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55, the provisions of that section shall be binding as long as any Bonds of this issue remain outstanding.
- B. The Bond Registrar is authorized and directed to notify the Commissioner of Education if it becomes aware of a potential default in the payment of principal or interest on the Bonds or if, on the day two business days prior to the date a payment is due on the Bonds, there are insufficient funds to make that payment on deposit with the Bond Registrar.
- C. The District further covenants to comply with all procedures now or hereafter established by the Department of Management and Budget and the Department of Education of the State of Minnesota pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55 and otherwise to take such actions as necessary to comply with that section.

Section 6. Certificates of Proceedings; Miscellaneous.

- 6.01 <u>Filing of Resolution; County Auditor Certificate</u>. The Clerk is directed to file in the office of the County Auditor of St. Louis County a certified copy of this Resolution and such other information as the County Auditor may require, and to obtain from the County Auditor a certificate stating that the Bonds herein authorized have been duly entered on the Auditor's register and that the tax required by law for the payment of said Bonds has been levied.
- 6.02 <u>Authentication of Transcript</u>. The officers of the District are authorized and directed to prepare and furnish to the Purchaser and to Bond Counsel certified copies of all proceedings and records of the District relating to the authorization and issuance of the Bonds and to the financial condition and affairs of the District and other affidavits and certificates as may reasonably be requested to show the facts relating to the legality and marketability of the Bonds as such facts appear from the official books and records of the officers' custody or otherwise known to them. All of such certified copies, certificates and affidavits, including any heretofore furnished, constitute representations of the District as to the correctness of facts recited therein and the actions stated therein to have been taken.
- 6.03 Offering Materials. The Official Statement relating to the Bonds, on file with the Clerk and presented to this meeting, is hereby approved and deemed final, and the furnishing thereof to prospective purchasers of the Bonds is hereby ratified and confirmed, insofar as the same relates to the Bonds and the sale thereof. The Chair and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to certify that they have examined the Official Statement prepared and circulated in connection with the issuance and sale of the Bonds and that to the best of their knowledge and belief the Official Statement is a complete and accurate representation of the facts and representations made therein as of the date of the Official Statement.

- 6.04 <u>Absent or Disabled Officers</u>. In the event of the absence or disability of the Chair, Clerk or CFO/Executive Director of Business Services, such officers or members of the Board as in the opinion of the District's attorney may act in their behalf shall, without further act or authorization, execute and deliver the Bonds, and do all things and execute all instruments and documents required to be done or executed by such absent or disabled officers.
- 6.05 <u>Defeasance</u>. When all of the Bonds have been discharged as provided in this Section, all pledges, covenants and other rights granted by this Resolution shall cease. The District may discharge its obligations with respect to any Bonds which are due on any date by depositing with the Bond Registrar on or before that date a sum sufficient for the payment thereof in full with interest accrued from the due date to the date of such deposit. The District may also discharge all Bonds of said issue at any time by irrevocably depositing in escrow with the Bond Registrar, for the purpose of paying all principal and interest due on such Bonds to maturity, a sum of cash or securities of the types described in Section 475.67 of the Act, as amended, in such aggregate amount, bearing interest at such rates and maturing or callable at the District's option on such dates as shall be required to provide funds sufficient for this purpose.

Section 7. <u>Continuing Disclosure</u>. The Board of the District acknowledges that the Bonds are subject to the continuing disclosure requirements of Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (17 C.F.R. § 240.15c2-12) (the "Rule"). The Rule governs the obligations of certain underwriters to require that issuers of municipal bonds enter into agreements for the benefit of the Holders to provide continuing disclosure with respect to the Bonds. To provide for the public availability of certain information relating to the Bonds and the security therefor and to permit underwriters of the Bonds to comply with the Rule, which will enhance the marketability of the Bonds, the Chair and the Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute a Continuing Disclosure Certificate substantially in the form of the Certificate currently on file in the office of the District.

EXHIBIT A
TAX LEVY SCHEDULE

Levy Year	Collection Year	Tax Levy
2016	2017	\$139,467*
2017	2018	135,243
2018	2019	137,655
2019	2020	139,125
2020	2021	135,188

^{*} To be paid from School Board appropriation of \$136,272 from general fund reserves for operating capital purposes and \$3,195.10 from the rounding amount.

M-Harala, S-Welty, to approve Resolution B-11-17-3495 — Providing for the Issuance, Sale and Delivery of \$615,000 Taxable General Obligation Capital Facilities Bonds, Series 2017B; Establishing the Terms and Form Thereof; Creating A Construction Fund and Debt Service Fund Therefor; and Awarding the Sale Thereof.

Discussion took place regarding this item.

Upon a vote, the same was approved – unanimously.

M-Harala, S-Sandstad, to approve the remainder of the Business Committee Report.

Member Sandstad withheld Item 4.B.2)

Member Johnston withheld Item 1.F.

Member Johnston requested a separate vote on Item 1 Financial Report

Member Johnston withheld Items 3.G. and 3.H.

Member Johnston requested a separate vote on Item 4.B.2)

Member Oswald withheld Items 3.A. and 6.A.

Member Johnston withheld Item 1.F. APU Projections to comment on the slight increase in the overall enrollment numbers and his concerns on the enrollment trend in the western schools when comparing enrollment numbers for November 2016 versus November 2017.

<u>Upon a vote, on Items 1.A. – 1.G. Financial Report, the same was approved 6-1 as follows:</u> Yea: Harala, Loeffler-Kemp, Kirby, Oswald, Sandstad, Welty Nay: Johnston

Member Oswald withheld Item 3.A. New Policy 204 – School Board Meeting Minutes to request that policy 204 be a by-law instead just a policy as several of the policies being deleted are actually by-laws.

Member Johnston withheld Item 3.G. New Policy XXX - Data Practices to encourage the School Board not to delay the vote on this policy.

Member Johnston withheld Item 3.H. Information Requests – Deletion to state that if 3.G. is tabled or postponed, then 3.H. must be postponed or tabled as well.

Member Sandstad withheld Item 4.B.2) Change Order #2 for RFP #306 – Removal of Rubber Mulch from Playgrounds for SAS+ Associates Phase II to discuss the delays in the project, the unknown issues that developed and the fundraising done by parents to help pay for the project.

Discussion took place regarding this item.

<u>Upon a vote, on Item 4.B.2)</u> <u>Change Order #2 for RFP #306 – Removal of Rubber Mulch from Playgrounds for SAS+ Associates Phase II, the same was approved 4-3 as follows:</u>

Yea: Harala, Kirby, Loeffler-Kemp, Sandstad

Nay: Johnston, Oswald, Welty

Member Oswald withheld Item 6.A. Expenditure Contracts to mention that she would like to see the approval authority for the dollar amounts that the CFO or Superintendent can sign without Board involvement be reduced from \$25K to \$10K at the January 2018 Organizational meeting. Member Oswald also sought clarification on the Interquest Canine contract on which school was paying the cost of the contract (both according to the Assistant Superintendent).

Discussion took place regarding this item.

<u>Upon a vote, the remainder of the Business Committee Report was approved – unanimously.</u>

M-Harala, S-Sandstad, to adjourn the meeting. Upon a vote, the same was approved – unanimously.

➤ Chair Kirby adjourned the Regular School Board Meeting of November 21, 2017 at 9:34 p.m.